
Monarch River Academy

Special Board Meeting

Amended on September 11, 2020 at 11:34 AM PDT

Date and Time
Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM PDT

Location
3610 E. Ashlan Avenue
Fresno, CA 93726

Zoom Link: https://zoom.us/j/9854259770
Meeting ID: 985 425 9770
Dial by your location

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

Monarch River Mission Statement

The mission of Monarch River Academy is to develop the individual gifts of students in Tulare County and
adjacent counties to become proficient in Common Core State Standards and become critical thinkers,

responsible citizens and innovative leaders prepared for academic and real-life achievement in the 21st Century.
The mission will be accomplished in a personalized environment that fosters successful achievement through
quality, personalized, standards-based education, which could include online coursework, offline textbook work,
and unique hands-on and experiential learning experiences facilitated in partnership with students, parents, staff,

and community.

Agenda
Purpose Presenter Time

I. Opening Items 1:30 PM

A. Record Attendance 1 m
B. Call the Meeting to Order
C. Flag Salute 1 m
D. Approval of the Agenda Vote 1 m
E. Public Comments 2 m
F. Executive Director's Report Dr. Laurie Goodman 2 m

• Board on Track Platform Introduction

II. Finance 1:37 PM

1 of 2Powered by BoardOnTrack 1 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

https://zoom.us/j/9854259770


A. Unaudited Actuals for 2019-2020 Vote Darlington Ahaiwe 20 m
B. Charter School Capital Introduction & Presentation Discuss Shausta Eckland 25 m

III. Academic Excellence 2:22 PM

A. Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Discuss Michelene Fitzgerald 20 m
Public Hearing

B. Special Education Transition Program Presentation FYI Yolanda Vazquez 3 m
C. Students in Crisis Presentation FYI Yolanda Vazquez 10 m

1. The "Students in Crisis" one is for internal use ONLY and has our internal information and links.
2. The "Families in Crisis" one is for external use and to be shared on our social media. Click here.

IV. Closing Items 2:55 PM

A. Adjourn Meeting Vote
B. Announcement of the Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting FYI Kimmi Buzzard
September 22, 2020

Public Comment Rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items through
the teleconference platform, Zoom. Zoom does not require the members of the public to have an account or
login. Please either utilize the chat option to communicate to the administrative team of your desire to address
the Board or simply communicate orally your desire to address the Board when the Board asks for public
comments. Speakers may be called in the order requests are received. Comments are limited to 2 minutes each,
with no more than 15 minutes per single topic. If a member of the public utilizes a translator to address the
Board, those individuals are allotted 4 minutes each. If the Board utilizes simultaneous translation equipment in
a manner that allows the Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously, those individuals are
allotted 2 minutes each. By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda. The Board
may, at its discretion, refer a matter to school staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

Note: The Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting process. If
you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in
the public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 951-290-3013 at least 48 hours before the
scheduled board meeting so every reasonable effort can be made to accommodate you. (Government Code §
54954.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132)).

2 of 2Powered by BoardOnTrack 2 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://sites.google.com/inspireschools.org/yvcs-mra-familiesincrisis/home


Cover Sheet

Unaudited Actuals for 2019-2020

Section: II. Finance
Item: A. Unaudited Actuals for 2019-2020
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: Monarch River_Financial Package_Unaudited Actual Report.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 3 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch Rivers Academy 

1

Unaudited Financial Report

4 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



2

Monarch Rivers Academy - Enrollment

2

Actual Forecast Budget
Average Enrollment 897           897 1123
ADA 886           891 1067
Attendance Rate 98.8% 99.4% 95.0%
Unduplicated % 39.4% 39.4% 25.0%
Revenue per ADA $9,772 $9,690
Expenses per ADA $9,090 $9,291

Enrollment & Per Pupil Data

 Year-end ADA projection under budget expectations

Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020
5 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



3

Monarch Rivers Academy - Revenue

3Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020

 Annual (-) variance due to budget v. actual ADA. 

Actual Budget Fav/(Unf) Forecast Budget Fav/(Unf)
Revenue

State Aid-Rev Limit 8,050,981$         8,627,015$        (576,034)$        8,050,981$        9,505,986$        (1,455,005)$    
Federal Revenue -                            110,952             (110,952)          -                            110,952             (110,952)          
Other State Revenue 650,961              504,620             146,341           650,961              722,257             (71,297)            

Other Local Revenue 7,318                   -                           7,318                7,318                   -                           7,318                

Total Revenue 8,709,260$       9,242,587$      (533,327)$      8,709,260$       10,339,196$    (1,629,936)$   

Year-to-Date Annual/Full Year

6 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



4

Monarch Rivers Academy - Expenses

4Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020

 Year-end expenses are favorable to budget and aligns to adjusted ADA. 

Actual Budget Fav/(Unf) Forecast Budget Fav/(Unf)
Expenses

Certificated Salaries 2,791,644$         3,181,150$        389,506$         2,791,644$        3,181,150$        389,506$         
Classified Salaries 38,415                 -                           (38,415)            38,415                -                           (38,415)            
Benefits 788,041              1,013,425          225,383           788,041              1,013,425          225,383           
Books and Supplies 1,148,520           1,461,139          312,619           1,148,520           1,461,139          312,619           
Subagreement Services 2,524,801           2,826,577          301,777           2,524,801           2,952,687          427,887           
Operations  40,605                 78,392                37,787              40,605                78,392                37,787              
Facilities -                            39,249                39,249              -                            39,249                39,249              
Professional Services 623,436              1,002,579          379,143           623,436              1,067,330          443,893           
Depreciation -                            -                           -                         -                            -                           -                         

Interest 146,477              120,400             (26,077)            146,477              120,400             (26,077)            

Total Expenses 8,101,939$       9,722,912$      1,620,973$    8,101,939$       9,913,772$      1,811,834$    

Year-to-Date Annual/Full Year

7 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



5

Monarch Rivers Academy - Fund 
Balance

5

 Annual surplus exceeds budget projections.
 Reserve for economic uncertainty exceeds target. 

Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020

Actual Budget Fav/(Unf) Forecast Budget Fav/(Unf)

Total Surplus(Deficit) 607,321$           (480,325)$        1,087,646$    607,321$           425,424$          181,898$        

Beginning Fund Balance -                           -                          -                           -                          

Ending Fund Balance 607,321$           (480,325)$        607,321$           425,424$          

As a % of Annual Expenses 7.5% -4.8% 7.5% 4.3%

Year-to-Date Annual/Full Year

8 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



6

Monarch Rivers Academy - Cash 
Balance

6

 Cash projections deviated from budget but remained positive 
at year-end.  

Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020
9 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



7

Monarch Rivers Academy - Appendix

7

Monthly Cash Flow / Forecast 19-20
 Budget vs. Actual
 Statement of Financial Position
 Statement of Cash Flows

Monarch Rivers Academy COMMUNITY SCHOOL – May 2020
10 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Monthly Cash Flow/Forecast FY19-20
Revised 08/25/2020

ADA = 891.26
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Year-End 
Accruals

 Annual 
Forecast 

Annual 
Budget

Favorable / 
(Unfav.)

Revenues ADA 1066.85
State Aid - Revenue Limit

8011 LCFF State Aid -                   -                   -                      4,439,668      -                      -                      -                      865,585         2,607,461      -                      -                      (161,064)        7,751,650      9,169,545     (1,417,895)    
8012 Education Protection Account -                   -                   -                      53,800           -                      -                      34,090           -                      -                      -                      -                      90,352           178,242         213,370        (35,128)         
8096 In Lieu of Property Taxes -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      71,920           -                      -                      49,169           121,089         123,072        (1,983)           

-                   -                   -                      4,493,468      -                      -                      34,090           865,585         2,679,381      -                      -                      (21,543)          -                    8,050,981      9,505,986     (1,455,005)   
Federal Revenue

8181 Special Education - Entitlement -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      110,952        (110,952)       
-                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      110,952        (110,952)       

Other State Revenue
8311 State Special Education -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      92,761           372,326         465,087         504,620        (39,533)         
8520 Child Nutrition -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      -                     -                     
8545 School Facilities (SB740) -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      -                     -                     
8550 Mandated Cost -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      -                     -                     
8560 State Lottery -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      175,738         175,738         217,637        (41,900)         
8598 Prior Year Revenue -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      -                     -                     
8599 Other State Revenue -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      10,136           -                    10,136           -                     10,136          

-                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      92,761           558,200         -                    650,961         722,257        (71,297)         
Other Local Revenue

8660 Interest Revenue -                   -                   -                      1                     -                      -                      -                      5,595             -                      -                      -                      1,722             -                    7,318             -                     7,318             
-                   -                   -                      1                     -                      -                      -                      5,595             -                      -                      -                      1,722             -                    7,318             -                     7,318            

Total Revenue -                   -                   -                      4,493,469      -                      -                      34,090           871,180         2,679,381      -                      92,761           538,379         -                    8,709,260      10,339,196   (1,629,936)   

Expenses
Certificated Salaries

1100 Teachers' Salaries 121,783      183,007      177,711         175,737         138,753         189,866         168,978         169,742         169,355         168,323         175,288         176,170         -                    2,014,712      2,746,500     731,788        
1175 Teachers' Extra Duty/Stipends 5,958           15,131         29,331           25,802           23,363           24,413           22,270           23,720           47,589           28,695           25,995           46,789           -                    319,054         274,650        (44,404)         
1200 Pupil Support Salaries 1,875           9,601           7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             7,726             -                    88,733           35,000          (53,733)         
1300 Administrators' Salaries 27,208         27,775         33,344           26,658           50,492           18,659           27,708           27,008           34,950           31,800           29,408           34,133           -                    369,145         125,000        (244,145)       

156,824      235,514      248,111         235,923         220,333         240,664         226,682         228,196         259,619         236,543         238,417         264,817         -                    2,791,644      3,181,150     389,506        
Classified Salaries

2100 Instructional Salaries -                   4,001           3,905             4,054             3,088             3,215             3,555             3,117             3,509             3,321             3,256             3,393             -                    38,415           -                     (38,415)         
-                   4,001           3,905             4,054             3,088             3,215             3,555             3,117             3,509             3,321             3,256             3,393             -                    38,415           -                     (38,415)         

Benefits
3101 STRS 26,561         39,808         41,542           39,915           39,078           38,407           38,313           38,333           41,423           39,876           40,197           41,372           -                    464,825         531,252        66,427          
3301 OASDI -                   248              242                 251                 191                 199                 220                 (1,901)            218                 206                 202                 210                 -                    288                 -                     (288)               
3311 Medicare 2,179           3,376           3,495             3,329             3,106             3,378             3,200             3,223             3,687             3,351             3,371             3,756             -                    39,451           46,127          6,675             
3401 Health and Welfare (6,686)         29,163         19,611           23,171           16,770           31,450           21,834           21,220           21,663           21,460           19,179           19,179           -                    238,013         367,500        129,487        
3501 State Unemployment 5,109           4,135           1,174             567                 (237)               17                   7,396             2,379             252                 298                 6                     (11)                  -                    21,085           24,010          2,925             
3601 Workers' Compensation -                   4,080           2,040             2,040             2,040             2,040             2,082             2,040             2,040             2,662             1,286             2,028             -                    24,379           44,536          20,157          

27,162         80,810         68,104           69,274           60,949           75,491           73,046           65,295           69,282           67,854           64,241           66,534           -                    788,041         1,013,425     225,383        
Books and Supplies

4302 School Supplies 61,889         71,927         93,699           90,905           69,247           62,879           76,465           50,657           60,983           72,337           74,736           151,276         936,998         1,003,069     66,071          
4305 Software 5,455           1,418           4,435             1,830             6,003             46,287           6,976             4,035             2,854             23,735           576                 18,847           -                    122,450         291,250        168,800        
4310 Office Expense -                   1,614           257                 236                 393                 229                 1,227             216                 411                 1,632             940                 3,870             -                    11,025           22,404          11,379          
4311 Business Meals -                   -                   -                      (481)               481                 -                      -                      -                      22                   -                      -                      -                      -                    22                   1,120             1,098             
4400 Noncapitalized Equipment -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      54                   -                      -                      23,278           -                      54,693           78,026           143,296        65,270          

67,343         74,959         98,391           92,490           76,124           109,394         84,722           54,908           64,269           120,982         76,251           228,686         -                    1,148,520      1,461,139     312,619        
Subagreement Services

5102 Special Education -                   1,237           14,833           9,912             40,546           36,414           43,727           17,332           51,169           18,865           52,330           31,561           -                    317,926         330,724        12,797          
5106 Other Educational Consultants 10,121         74,059         44,593           92,637           51,994           91,060           118,292         82,143           79,046           121,183         26,931           488,953         -                    1,281,012      1,432,956     151,944        
5107 Instructional Services -                   -                   248,841         82,947           82,947           82,947           82,947           71,466           66,515           65,277           70,987           70,987           -                    925,862         1,189,008     263,146        

10,121         75,295         308,268         185,496         175,487         210,421         244,966         170,941         196,731         205,325         150,248         591,501         -                    2,524,801      2,952,687     427,887        

11 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Monthly Cash Flow/Forecast FY19-20
Revised 08/25/2020

ADA = 891.26
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Year-End 
Accruals

 Annual 
Forecast 

Annual 
Budget

Favorable / 
(Unfav.)

Operations and Housekeeping
5201 Auto and Travel -                   133              979                 877                 1,191             -                      759                 537                 329                 -                      -                      28                   -                    4,832             17,966          13,133          
5300 Dues & Memberships -                   -                   160                 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    160                 6,742             6,582             
5400 Insurance -                   2,592           1,296             1,296             1,296             1,296             1,296             3,102             603                 22,179           (3,820)            3,550             -                    34,688           29,200          (5,488)           
5900 Communications -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      641                 -                    641                 6,742             6,102             
5901 Postage and Shipping -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      284                 -                    284                 15,725          15,442          

-                   2,725           2,435             2,173             2,487             1,296             2,055             3,639             932                 22,179           (3,820)            4,503             -                    40,605           78,392          37,787          
Facilities, Repairs and Other Leases

5604 Other Leases -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      600                 -                      -                      (600)               -                      -                      -                    -                      -                     -                     
5610 Repairs and Maintenance                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             4 491             4 491             

-                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      600                 -                      -                      (600)               -                      -                      -                    -                      39,249          39,249          
Professional/Consulting Services

5801 IT -                   -                   663                 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    663                 -                     (663)               
5803 Legal 3,101           2,451           3,500             2,232             -                      -                      652                 209                 144                 1,317             -                      6,447             -                    20,052           22,457          2,405             
5804 Professional Development 55                -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      3,112             -                      -                      -                    3,167             22,681          19,515          
5805 General Consulting 750              750              -                      750                 2,050             1,000             -                      1,432             2,500             -                      -                      -                      -                    9,232             16,003          6,771             
5806 Special Activities/Field Trips 12,930         14,067         12,837           10,763           3,623             425                 838                 289                 505                 817                 1,729             667                 59,490           286,591        227,101        
5807 Bank Charges -                   -                   352                 148                 103                 236                 234                 165                 110                 -                      23                   99                   -                    1,471             896                (574)               
5808 Printing -                   -                   -                      -                      10                   -                      -                      -                      -                      156                 -                      -                      -                    167                 1,344             1,177             
5809 Other taxes and fees -                   -                   -                      21                   -                      23                   -                      157                 -                      (20)                  1,241             3                     -                    1,425             5,334             3,909             
5811 Management Fee -                   -                   75,734           25,245           25,245           25,245           25,245           21,751           20,244           19,867           21,605           21,605           -                    281,785         361,872        80,087          
5812 District Oversight Fee -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      241,529         -                    241,529         285,180        43,650          
5814 SPED Encroachment -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,456             -                    4,456             49,246          44,790          

16,837         17,268         93,086           39,158           31,031           26,929           26,969           24,002           23,502           25,249           24,599           274,806         -                    623,436         1,067,330     443,893        
Interest

7438 Interest Expense -                   -                   60,762           -                      34,492           33,956           1,201             -                      -                      -                      15,755           311                 -                    146,477         120,400        (26,077)         
-                   -                   60,762           -                      34,492           33,956           1,201             -                      -                      -                      15,755           311                 -                    146,477         120,400        (26,077)         

Total Expenses 278,288      490,571      883,062         628,569         603,992         701,368         663,796         550,098         617,844         680,854         568,947         1,434,551      -                    8,101,939      9,913,772     1,811,834     

Monthly Surplus (Deficit) (278,288)     (490,571)     (883,062)       3,864,900      (603,992)       (701,368)       (629,706)       321,082         2,061,538      (680,854)       (476,186)       (896,173)       -                    607,321         425,424        181,898        
7.5%

Cash Flow Adjustments
Monthly Surplus (Deficit) (278,288)     (490,571)     (883,062)        3,864,900      (603,992)        (701,368)        (629,706)        321,082         2,061,538      (680,854)        (476,186)        (896,173)        -                    607,321         Cert. Instr.
Cash flows from operating activities 39.6% 83.5%

Depreciation/Amortization -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      (36,929)         308,065        
Public Funding Receivables -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (697,721)        -                    (697,721)       
Grants and Contributions Rec. -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (187,698)        (2,294,763)    -                    (2,482,461)    
Due To/From Related Parties 155,962      564,234      (2,332,360)    (508,849)        277,081         452,121         (264,176)        25,430           (227,058)        35,108           179                 1,873,444      -                    51,116           
Prepaid Expenses -                   (6,673)         -                      (16,415)          16,415           (108,192)        108,192         (1,004)            (31,375)          (55,608)          (4,819)            42,217           -                    (57,263)          
Accounts Payable 3,681           27,150         29,795           (19,941)          (3,840)            (33,225)          76,171           (24,689)          30,914           27,004           51,062           415,393         -                    579,475         
Accrued Expenses 123,645      18,521         (50,129)          (6,346)            2,321             (19,563)          19,844           27,823           53,334           (91,202)          18,536           486,405         -                    583,189         24.09 :1
Other Liabilities -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      581,400         -                    581,400         

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of Prop. And Equip. -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      
Notes Receivable -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Factoring -                   -                   3,773,700      -                      757,900         749,500         29,500           -                      -                      -                      610,900         311                 -                    5,921,811      
Payments on Factoring -                   -                   -                      (3,773,700)    -                      -                      (1,507,400)    -                      -                      -                    (5,281,100)    
Proceeds from Debt -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      575,162         -                      -                    575,162         
Payments on Debt -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                      

Total Change in Cash 5,000           112,662      537,943         (460,352)        445,885         339,273         (660,175)        348,642         379,952         (765,552)        587,136         (489,486)        

Cash, Beginning of Month -                   5,000           117,662         655,605         195,253         641,138         980,411         320,236         668,879         1,048,831      283,279         870,415         

Cash, End of Month 5,000           117,662      655,605         195,253         641,138         980,411         320,236         668,879         1,048,831      283,279         870,415         380,929         

Pupil:Teacher Ratio

12 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Budget vs Actual

For the period ended June 30, 2020

 Current 
Period Actual 

 Current 
Period 
Budget 

 Current 
Period 

Variance 

 Current Year 
Actual 

 YTD Budget 
 YTD Budget 

Variance 
 Total 

Budget 

Revenues
State Aid - Revenue Limit 8,050,981         9,505,986    

LCFF State Aid (161,064)$       1,651,259$  (1,812,323)$   7,751,650$       9,169,545$  (1,417,895)$      9,169,545$  
Education Protection Account 90,352             53,343          37,010            178,242             213,370       (35,128)             213,370       
In Lieu of Property Taxes 49,169             8,615            40,554            121,089             123,072       (1,983)                123,072       

         Total State Aid - Revenue Limit (21,543)            1,713,216    (1,734,759)     8,050,981         9,505,986    (1,455,005)        9,505,986    
Federal Revenue -                          110,952       

Special Education - Entitlement -                        9,320            (9,320)             -                          110,952       (110,952)           110,952       
         Total Federal Revenue -                        9,320            (9,320)             -                          110,952       (110,952)           110,952       

Other State Revenue 650,961             722,257       
State Special Education 372,326           42,388          329,938          465,087             504,620       (39,533)             504,620       
State Lottery 175,738           217,637       (41,900)           175,738             217,637       (41,900)             217,637       
Other State Revenue 10,136             -                     10,136            10,136               -                     10,136               -                     

         Total Other State Revenue 558,200           260,025       298,174          650,961             722,257       (71,297)             722,257       
Other Local Revenue 7,318                 -                     

Interest Revenue 1,722               -                     1,722              7,318                 -                     7,318                 -                     
         Total Other Local Revenue 1,722               -                     1,722              7,318                 -                     7,318                 -                     
      Total Revenues 538,379           1,982,562    (1,444,183)     8,709,260         10,339,196  (1,629,936)        10,339,196  

Expenses
Certificated Salaries 2,791,644         3,181,150    

Teachers' Salaries 176,170           228,875       52,705            2,014,712         2,746,500    731,788             2,746,500    
Teachers' Extra Duty/Stipends 46,789             22,888          (23,901)           319,054             274,650       (44,404)             274,650       
Pupil Support Salaries 7,726               2,917            (4,809)             88,733               35,000          (53,733)             35,000          
Administrators' Salaries 34,133             10,417          (23,717)           369,145             125,000       (244,145)           125,000       

         Total Certificated Salaries 264,817           265,096       279                  2,791,644         3,181,150    389,506             3,181,150    
Classified Salaries 38,415               -                     

Instructional Salaries 3,393               -                     (3,393)             38,415               -                     (38,415)             -                     
         Total Classified Salaries 3,393               -                     (3,393)             38,415               -                     (38,415)             -                     

Benefits 788,041             1,013,425    
State Teachers' Retirement System, certificated positio 41,372             44,271          2,899              464,825             531,252       66,427               531,252       
OASDI/Medicare/Alternative, certificated positions 210                   -                     (210)                288                     -                     (288)                   -                     
Medicare/Alternative, certificated positions 3,756               3,844            88                    39,451               46,127          6,675                 46,127          
Health and Welfare Benefits, certificated positions 19,179             30,625          11,446            238,013             367,500       129,487             367,500       
State Unemployment Insurance, certificated positions (11)                    1,201            1,212              21,085               24,010          2,925                 24,010          
Workers' Compensation Insurance, certificated positio 2,028               3,711            1,683              24,379               44,536          20,157               44,536          

         Total Benefits 66,534             83,652          17,117            788,041             1,013,425    225,383             1,013,425    
Books & Supplies 1,148,702         1,461,139    

School Supplies 151,276           130,399       (20,877)           937,356             1,003,069    65,714               1,003,069    
Software 18,847             24,271          5,424              122,274             291,250       168,976             291,250       
Office Expense 3,870               1,867            (2,003)             11,025               22,404          11,379               22,404          
Business Meals -                        93                  93                    22                       1,120            1,098                 1,120            
Noncapitalized Equipment 54,693             18,628          (36,065)           78,026               143,296       65,270               143,296       

         Total Books & Supplies 228,686           175,259       (53,427)           1,148,702         1,461,139    312,437             1,461,139    

13 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Budget vs Actual

For the period ended June 30, 2020

 Current 
Period Actual 

 Current 
Period 
Budget 

 Current 
Period 

Variance 

 Current Year 
Actual 

 YTD Budget 
 YTD Budget 

Variance 
 Total 

Budget 

Subagreement Services 2,524,801         2,952,687    
Special Education 31,561             27,560          (4,001)             317,926             330,723       12,797               330,723       
Other Educational Consultants 488,953           186,284       (302,669)        1,281,012         1,432,956    151,944             1,432,956    
Instructional Services 70,987             227,995       157,008          925,862             1,189,008    263,146             1,189,008    

         Total Subagreement Services 591,501           441,839       (149,662)        2,524,801         2,952,687    427,887             2,952,687    
Operations & Housekeeping 40,605               78,392          

Auto and Travel 28                     -                     (28)                   4,832                 17,966          13,133               17,966          
Dues & Memberships -                        562               562                  160                     6,742            6,582                 6,742            
Insurance 3,550               2,433            (1,117)             34,688               29,200          (5,488)                29,200          
Utilities -                        131               131                  -                          1,568            1,568                 1,568            
Janitorial Services -                        37                  37                    -                          448               448                    448               
Communications 641                   562               (79)                   641                     6,742            6,102                 6,742            
Postage and Shipping 284                   1,573            1,289              284                     15,725          15,442               15,725          

         Total Operations & Housekeeping 4,503               5,298            795                  40,605               78,392          37,787               78,392          
Facilities, Repairs & Other Leases -                          39,249          

Rent -                        2,808            2,808              -                          33,691          33,691               33,691          
Additional Rent -                        89                  89                    -                          1,067            1,067                 1,067            
Repairs and Maintenance -                        374               374                  -                          4,491            4,491                 4,491            

         Total Facilities, Repairs & Other Leases -                        3,271            3,271              -                          39,249          39,249               39,249          
Professional/Consulting Services 623,254             1,067,330    

IT -                        -                     -                       663                     -                     (663)                   -                     
Audit & Taxes -                        -                     -                       -                          6,743            6,743                 6,743            
Legal 6,447               1,871            (4,576)             20,052               22,457          2,405                 22,457          
Professional Development -                        2,268            2,268              3,167                 22,681          19,515               22,681          
General Consulting -                        1,600            1,600              9,050                 16,003          6,953                 16,003          
Special Activities/Field Trips 667                   37,257          36,590            59,490               286,591       227,101             286,591       
Bank Charges 99                     90                  (9)                     1,471                 896               (574)                   896               
Printing -                        134               134                  167                     1,344            1,177                 1,344            
Other Taxes and Fees 3                       533               530                  1,425                 5,334            3,909                 5,334            
Management Fee 21,605             69,390          47,785            281,785             361,872       80,087               361,872       
District Oversight Fee 241,529           51,396          (190,133)        241,529             285,180       43,650               285,180       
SPED Encroachment 4,456               4,137            (319)                4,456                 49,246          44,790               49,246          
Public Relations/Recruitment -                        898               898                  -                          8,983            8,983                 8,983            

         Total Professional/Consulting Services 274,806           169,575       (105,231)        623,254             1,067,330    444,076             1,067,330    
Interest 146,477             120,400       

               Interest Expense 311                   56,000          55,689            146,477             120,400       (26,077)             120,400       
         Total Interest 311                   56,000          55,689            146,477             120,400       (26,077)             120,400       
      Total Expenses 1,434,551       1,199,989    (234,562)        8,101,939         9,913,773    1,811,834         9,913,773    

Change in Net Assets (896,173)         782,573       (1,678,745)     607,321             425,424       181,898            425,424       
Net Assets, Beginning of Period 1,503,494       

Net Assets, End of Period 607,322$        607,321$          

14 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020

 Current 
Balance 

 Beginning Year 
Balance 

 YTD Change 
 YTD % 
Change 

Assets
Current Assets 2,926,859               -                                0%

      Cash & Cash Equivalents 380,929$         -$                       380,929$         0%
      Public Funding Receivables 697,721            -                         697,721            0%
      Grants & Contributions Receivable 1,871,561        -                         1,871,561        0%
      Factored Receivable (29,500)            -                         (29,500)            0%
      Due To/From Related Parties (51,116)            -                         (51,116)            0%
      Prepaid Expenses 57,264              -                         57,264              0%

Total Current Assets 2,926,859        -                         2,926,859        0%

Total Assets 2,926,859$      -$                      2,926,859$      0%

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 1,888,166        -                         0%

      Accounts Payable 579,475$         -$                       579,475$         0%
      Accrued Liabilities 583,189            -                         583,189            0%

      Deferred Revenue 581,400            -                         581,400            0%

      Notes Payable, Current Portion 144,101            -                         144,101            0%
Total Current Liabilities 1,888,166        -                         1,888,166        0%

Long-Term Liabilities 431,372            -                         0%
      Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 431,372            -                         431,372            0%

Total Long-Term Liabilities 431,372           -                         431,372           0%

Total Liabilities 2,319,537        -                         2,319,537        0%

Total Net Assets 607,322            -                         607,322           0%

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,926,859$      -$                      2,926,859$      0%

15 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Monarch River Academy
Statement of Cash Flows

For the period ended June 30, 2020

 Month Ended 
06/30/20 

 YTD Ended 
06/30/20 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
   Changes in Net Assets  $         (896,173)  $          607,322 
   Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows 
from operating activities:
   Decrease/(Increase) in Operating Assets:
      Public Funding Receivables             (697,721)             (697,721)
      Grants, Contributions & Pledges Receivable          (2,294,763)          (1,842,061)
      Due from Related Parties           1,873,444                 51,116 

      Prepaid Expenses                 42,217               (57,264)
      Accounts Payable               415,393               579,475 
      Accrued Expenses               486,405               583,189 
      Deferred Revenue               581,400               581,400 
Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities             (489,797)             (194,544)

 $   (194,543.97)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities                       311               575,473 
    Proceeds from (payments on) Long-Term Debt                       311               575,473 
Total Cash Flows from Financing Activities                       311               575,473 

 $     575,472.85 
Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents             (489,487)               380,929 
Cash & Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period               870,415                            - 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period  $          380,929  $          380,929 

16 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Charter School Capital Introduction & Presentation

Section: II. Finance
Item: B. Charter School Capital Introduction & Presentation
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: CSC DTF preso 200910.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 17 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Charter School Capital 

Presents:

SY20/21 DTF

Payment Proposal:

School Forum

Presentation

Shausta Eckland & Tricia Blum

September 10, 2020

18 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://www.viedu.org/


3
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

•

WHO WE 

ARE

▪ We are a specialty finance company focused 

on financial, business and facilities support 

for charter schools

▪ In the past 13 years, we have:

o Served more than 1,250,000 students 

and their families

o Supported more than 700 charter schools

o Invested $2B in helping charter schools 

better serve their communities

▪ More than 45 employees headquartered in 

Portland, OR

▪ Stellar track record with schools and 
investors

COMPANY OVERVIEW

19 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



4
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

WHAT WE

DO

WORKING CAPITAL
Our receivable sales product is a reliable and flexible process 

that provides access to capital for operations, facilities, 

programmatic expenses, or other obligations.

ENERGY
Partnering with BioStar Renewables, we

retrofit aging school energy systems with new, efficient systems; 

reducing utility expenses through upgraded electrical 

components (e.g. LED lights, HVAC systems, and 

electrical controls).

FACILITIES
Our facilities financing product is based on acquiring charter 

school real estate supporting development and/or making facility 

upgrades.

ENROLLMENT MARKETING
Our team is providing enrollment marketing consulting and 

advertising services to boost enrollment.

BUSINESS SERVICES

EXCLUSIVELY FOR OUR CLIENTS
20 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



6
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

SY20/21 DTF PAYMENT PROPOSAL

21 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



7
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

WHY SHOULD YOU PAY YOUR DUE TO...

It's good business!

• Fiscally responsible

• FCMAT

• Yearly Audit

• Prevent "going 
concerns"

It's free money 
(kinda)!

Like the $20 bill you find in 
your pocket

• Incoming funds have 
not been included in 
current budget—
creates a surplus of 
unexpected money

Don't worry /

Be helpful!

Parent/Teacher Speak: 
"Why don't you just write 

the paper now, rather than
have it hanging over your

head all weekend?"

• Some schools need 
your help—this fight 
is bigger than ICS or 
each other—this is 
about the movement

22 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



8
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

SY20/21 DTF PAYMENT PROPOSAL

PROPOSED SOLUTION:

• Custom Funding Plans for SY20/21 delivered

– Schools kept cash positive

– Repay DTF in Sept

– Solve for 2021 deferrals

• Repay DTF as of 9.2.20 by set date in Sept

– School DTF ONLY

• Schedule funding (if necessary) for Sept 25

• All funds deposited into CSC paying agent account

– Serve as an escrow account. Once all funds are 
deposited then CSC will release funding to appropriate 
schools.

oEmail in advance from each school

23 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



9
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

SY20/21 DTF PAYMENT PROPOSAL

PROPOSED SOLUTION LOGISTICS:

• 1st wave: repay 9.2.20 DTF between schools

• True-up SY20/21 Budgets post fundings

• reconcile DTF spreadsheet

• 2nd wave: repay next round of reconciled DTF between 

schools (hopefully final)

• Repeat as needed

24 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



10
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

DTF BY SCHOOL (DATED 9.2.20)

SCHOOL
BLUE RIDGE 

TOTAL

CABRILLO 

TOTAL

CLARKSVILLE 

TOTAL

COTTONWOOD 

TOTAL

FEATHER 

RIVER TOTAL

GRANITE 

MOUNTAIN 

TOTAL

HEARTLAND 

TOTAL

LAKE VIEW 

TOTAL

MISSION 

VISTA TOTAL

MONARCH 

RIVER TOTAL

PACIFIC 

COAST TOTAL

TRIUMPH 

TOTAL

WINSHIP 

TOTAL

YOSEMITE 

TOTAL
TOTAL DTF:

Blue Ridge $ - $ 771,903 $ 97,552 $ 496,760 $ (29,895) $ 2,411,250 $ 294,548 $ (364) $ (62,813) $ 510,501 $ 453,684 $ (95,922) $ (11,975) $ (136,770) $ 4,698,459

Cabrillo Point $ (771,903) $ - $ (9,528) $ 13,342 $ 45,429 $ (181,443) $ (488,922) $ (23,878) $ 1,224,809 $ (12,717) $ (95,529) $ (114,320) $ 37,825 $ (327,176) $ (704,012)

Clarksville $ (97,552) $ 9,528 $ - $ (31,703) $ (786) $ (4,671) $ 32,619 $ (15,763) $ (37,588) $ (94,608) $ 37,651 $ (4,181) $ (13,802) $ (238,138) $ (458,996)

Cottonwood $ (496,760) $ (13,342) $ 31,703 $ - $ 246,861 $ (26,496) $ 42,911 $ (123,420) $ 21,459 $ (191,475) $ 73,564 $ 2,666 $ 30,629 $ (427,234) $ (828,934)

Feather River $ 29,895 $ (45,429) $ 786 $ (246,861) $ - $ (140,091) $ (4,463) $ (333,029) $ (143,057) $ (61,756) $ (132,265) $ 2,712 $ (44,580) $ (140,525) $ (1,258,663)

Granite Mountain $ (2,411,250) $ 181,443 $ 4,671 $ 26,496 $ 140,091 $ - $ 266,045 $ (15,219) $ (90,914) $ (2,116) $ (719,151) $ (19,737) $ (4,443) $ (196,872) $ (2,840,955)

Heartland $ (294,548) $ 488,922 $ (32,619) $ (42,911) $ 4,463 $ (266,045) $ - $ (10,494) $ (88,618) $ 40,427 $ 113,593 $ (15,372) $ (11,555) $ (471,238) $ (585,994)

Lake View $ 364 $ 23,878 $ 15,763 $ 123,420 $ 333,029 $ 15,219 $ 10,494 $ - $ 6,764 $ (6,016) $ 1,129 $ (6,963) $ (3,486) $ 879 $ 514,475

Mission Vista $ 62,813 $ (1,224,809) $ 37,588 $ (21,459) $ 143,057 $ 90,914 $ 88,618 $ (6,764) $ - $ (8,749) $ 89,482 $ (7,899) $ (6,703) $ (1,190,881) $ (1,954,793)

Monarch River $ (510,501) $ 12,717 $ 94,608 $ 191,475 $ 61,756 $ 2,116 $ (40,427) $ 6,016 $ 8,749 $ - $ 71,954 $ (10,616) $ (684) $ (1,307,521) $ (1,420,357)

Pacific Coast $ (453,684) $ 95,529 $ (37,651) $ (73,564) $ 132,265 $ 719,151 $ (113,593) $ (1,129) $ (89,482) $ (71,954) $ - $ (63,513) $ (20,219) $ (142,719) $ (120,561)

Triumph $ 95,922 $ 114,320 $ 4,181 $ (2,666) $ (2,712) $ 19,737 $ 15,372 $ 6,963 $ 7,899 $ 10,616 $ 63,513 $ - $ 22,024 $ (6,572) $ 348,597

Winship $ 11,975 $ (37,825) $ 13,802 $ (30,629) $ 44,580 $ 4,443 $ 11,555 $ 3,486 $ 6,703 $ 684 $ 20,219 $ (22,024) $ - $ 22,377 $ 49,346

Yosemite $ 136,770 $ 327,176 $ 238,138 $ 427,234 $ 140,525 $ 196,872 $ 471,238 $ (879) $ 1,190,881 $ 1,307,521 $ 142,719 $ 6,572 $ (22,377) $ - $ 4,562,389

TD$ You Owe: $ (5,036,197) $ (1,321,404) $ (79,798) $ (449,793) $ (33,393) $ (618,747) $ (647,405) $ (530,940) $ (512,471) $ (449,391) $ (946,945) $ (360,548) $ (139,823) $ (4,585,645) $ (15,712,502)

TD$ Due To You: $ 337,739 $ 2,025,416 $ 538,794 $ 1,278,727 $ 1,292,057 $ 3,459,702 $ 1,233,399 $ 16,465 $ 2,467,265 $ 1,869,748 $ 1,067,506 $ 11,951 $ 90,477 $ 23,256 $ 15,712,502

NET TOTAL: $ (4,698,459) $ 704,012 $ 458,996 $ 828,934 $ 1,258,663 $ 2,840,955 $ 585,994 $ (514,475) $ 1,954,793 $ 1,420,357 $ 120,561 $ (348,597) $ (49,346) $ (4,562,389) $ -

25 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



11
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

FORECASTED TIMELINE

• Each school schedules a funding (if necessary) for Sept 25

– Just like a regular funding request

• Plan to share plan at school board meetings ASAP/ special meeting

• Each school will separately send an email to CSC indicating amount to pay each school (Date TBD—
sooner the better)

• All funds deposited into CSC paying agent account

– Serve as an escrow account

– Once all funds are deposited then CSC will release funding to appropriate schools

oEmail in advance from each school

–Will release funds as per school's direction

• On September 25 schools will receive a lump sum of funds via CSC blocked account

• Each school should reconcile amounts received

• Take a breath—chew

• Get ready for the next bite

• Take the bite...

26 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



12
Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

Q&A
?

27 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



28 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Copyright © 2018 Charter School Capital, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Thank you!

29 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

Section: III. Academic Excellence
Item: A. Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: LCaP - Monarch River Academy 2020.docx

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 30 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Page 1

California Department of Education, July 2020

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone

Monarch River Academy Michelene Fitzgerald
Director of Community Engagement

michelene@inspireschools.org 
(559) 905-5373

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

On March 18, 2020, the board of Monarch River Academy (MRA)  approved to physically close our school in response to COVID-19 
pandemic.  We immediately transitioned to an emergency distance plan.  This plan continued until the end of the school year, June 11, 2020. 
Throughout the rest of the school year, we have provided staff, students, parents and stakeholders with ongoing updates and guidance for 
state and local agencies. During the months of June and July, the leadership team worked with all stakeholders to plan and prepare for a 
safe and successful August reopening that considers the current challenges. Monarch River Academy  is located in Fresno County, and 
Fresno County is on the state COVID-19 watch list due to the increase in COVID-19 cases. We communicate regularly with the Fresno 
County Office of Education and the local health departments.  MRA is deeply committed to making sure that all students make academic 
progress and are college and career ready.  Each of our 2,188 students were swiftly impacted in the LEA, like other schools, with the initial 
closure of the school and swift move to distance learning.  Fresno county public health department consistently reported COVID-19 cases 
throughout the summer while the county made hard decisions to suspend in-person school events and in-person services.  Reflecting on the 
spring surveys coupled with the current LCaP surveys, Monarch River staff developed plans for student engagement, attendance, and 
achievement.  In September, the state released very specific guidelines for in-person assessments and other activities if state COVID-19 
guidelines are met. 
Monarch River Academy (MRA) is highly committed to making sure that all students make academic progress and are college and career 
ready.  We are a non-classroom-based independent study work charter school. While the in-person aspect of our curriculum is directly 
affected by the school closure mandate, our default curriculum delivery platform is a distance-learning format. However, we also emphasize 
personalized individualized learning plans which are effective by closures of local resources. Learning plans allow students to learn through 
local cultures, landscapes, and resources to contextualize our curriculum and match their interests. Our model of distance learning includes 
educational funds which are aligned with an individual learning plan, curriculum choices that are rigorous and aligned with the school mission 
and learning outcome goals. The charter has a MTSS intervention system to support any gaps in skills, strategies, and knowledge as well as 
addressing social emotional learning. This personalized learning plan is supported by a dedicated teacher(s) who work closely with the family 
and to ensure student success. MRA has increased the rigor, frequency, and validity of the local benchmark assessments to ensure that 
learning loss does not occur.  A data driven, student centered program will inform instructional practice while providing more support and 
resources for intervention if needed. Evidence of student learning and success will be documented with the student information system to 

31 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
mailto:michelene@inspireschools.org


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 2

include a portfolio of student work that demonstrates mastery. Additionally, the results of our surveys make clear that the COVID-19 
pandemic and societal unrest has directly affected our students and families. To mitigate the negative impact of COVID-19 and societal 
unrest on the education of our students, we have increased and refined various services and approaches, including social-emotional support.  

Stakeholder Engagement
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

Since the spring of 2020, we have kept our board and stakeholders informed of the fluidity of the COVID-19 pandemic and engaged in 
assessing needs through a variety of mediums, including surveys administered in April and August 2020 and virtual meetings in July, August 
and September 2020. We translated questionnaires used in surveys into appropriate languages and checked with families regarding their 
understanding of our plans for school opening in August. Monarch River has surveyed parents, staff, students, and stakeholders for feedback.  
Dr. Laurie Goodman offered weekly public, virtual meetings for stakeholders during the month of July, then one per month after that and have 
been planned for the remainder of the school year. The school has created and hosted a Facebook page for collaboration between staff, 
families, vendors, and the community. All stakeholders are invited to interact on our social media and school website.  The public virtual 
meetings hosted by Dr. Goodman are the result of parents desiring answers from the staff as the decisions are being made for the school.  
The invitations to these meetings as well as our board meetings were shared via email, google calendar and social media.  When the 
meetings are complete the recording is posted on the Facebook account that is available to all stakeholders.  Monarch River governing school 
board meetings have been posted on the school website and is available for teleconference and remote participation.  Anyone interested in 
attending the public-school board meeting is invited to attend. Per Executive Order N-29-20 (https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2020/03/3.17.20-N-29-20-EO.pdf), published on March 18, 2020. Monarch River Academy  school has had an upgrade to the 
school website and families can access a variety of content at the touch of a button.  The content is updated and managed by staff committed 
to getting all information posted for stakeholders to have a timely delivery of information and updates.
Thus, we know an overwhelming majority of our parents have access to and know how to use the internet before the COVID-19 pandemic.  
We work with new families to ensure they have access to technology and the internet. We made, and continue to make, a concerted effort to 
inform all stakeholders of opportunities to participate in the development of our Learning Continuity Plan, including our September 1, 2020, 
public hearing.  When communicating with stakeholders, we do not assume they have access to the internet or speak English at home, 
therefore, our communication strategies include surveys, email, social media, school websites, telephone calls, and text messages. We also 
identified families who do not speak English at home (based on Language Surveys) and translated communications in a language accessible 
to them.  We want to ensure all stakeholders have notice of opportunities to contribute to our Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan, 
including proposed actions and expenditures. We encourage verbal and written comments.  We shared our Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan draft with our District English Learner Acquisition Committee (DELAC) on September 10, 2020. We provided Spanish 
translation and interpretation at the DELAC engagement meeting.  
We analyzed input from all formats and stakeholders. We translated input into themes and areas of need that directly informed our Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan.  

 [A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.

32 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 3

Board meetings, public hearings, and stakeholder input meetings were open to the public via Zoom.  All meetings are open, transparent, and 
accessible to the public. The agenda link is communicated to families and is posted on our school website. Members of the public can submit 
their comments during the livestream of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan public hearing as well as during the board approval 
meeting. Notice of and the agendas for the public hearing and the board approval meeting are publicized on our website at least 72 hours 
before they occur.  We also informed our stakeholders of our public hearing via emails, telephone calls, texts, and our school website. 
Communications are translated as appropriate. We held our public hearing during a regularly scheduled board meeting on September 11, 
2020.  The Board is scheduled to formally approve the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan on September 24, 2020. The LEA promoted 
and invited stakeholders to attend public hearings and local governing boards meetings through communication with their homeschool 
teacher, monthly parent newsletters, the school Facebook page, the school website and direct school email.  Executive Order N-29-20 allows 
the public to observe and address the legislative body via teleconference.  Monarch River provides a Zoom link via email and it is posted on 
social media.  Recordings from Monday meetings with Dr. Laurie Goodman and the Parent Advocacy Council have been posted on the 
school social media pages.  Families were able to borrow chromebooks and hotspots from our local office if they did not have the technology 
they needed during this time.  Monarch River Academy  also provided shipping of these items to families as needed.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]
Our stakeholder feedback informed the final version of our Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan in the following manner: 
Teachers- Our teachers expressed a desire to learn more about how social-emotional supports and intervention supports can be integrated 
into the core curriculum, particularly at the secondary level. We incorporated this suggestion in various sections within this plan, including 
Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being, Pupil Learning Loss Strategies, Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, and Distance 
Learning Professional Development. This feedback also informed expenditures related to staff, and parent training focused on implementing 
trauma-informed practices through in-person and distance learning curriculum. 
Parents- Given the increased closure of many community resources, including museums, and field trips to historical sites our parents 
expressed a desire to have access to a compendium of increased virtual resources such as virtual tours of museums and other historical 
sites to help contextualize the curriculum. Parents also expressed a desire to develop virtual clubs to connect students and increase 
community as well as social emotional connections with peers. Parent feedback informed various sections of this plan, particularly the Pupil 
Learning Loss Strategies and related expenditures. 
Parents and students asked for online social interactions for their children in peer social groups.  We are offering clubs for grade level bands 
at the elementary and middle school level.  Our high school students are encouraged to participate in their grade level class groups hosted 
by assigned High School Specialists.
DELAC- Our DELAC representatives expressed concern regarding the interruption and completion of the English Language Proficiency 
Assessments for California (ELPAC) and its impact on the reclassification of English Learners (ELs).  We replied in writing to all comments 
from our DELAC. Further, feedback from our DELAC informed our Pupil Learning Loss, Pupil Learning Loss Strategies, and Effectiveness of 
Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies sections. Feedback from our DELAC also informed various expenditures, including the creation 
of a Student Support Coordinator position.
Survey and Feedback Results Include:

33 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 4

Monarch River Academy  families had multiple opportunities to give their feedback on the school, educational process, support services and 
enrichment activities. Of the parents who provided feedback:  98.1% of those surveyed noted that they access daily instructional curriculum 
and learning resources either through online, textbook or a blended model.  All but .4% of students have access to a device that connects to 
the internet and these students have been offered the technology needed to connect or use technology.  Monarch River Academy  school is 
committed to providing a laptop to any enrolled student that needs one.  Almost all students have access to high speed internet and students 
who did not have access were provided access through a HotSpot or Cradlepoint which was provided by the school.  97% of daily instruction 
is delivered via a responsible parent or guardian in the home.  98% feel communication between the parent and the teacher is very good and 
typically delivered via email, text messaging and online meetings.  80% of the student population surveyed have no limitations on their device 
usage.  Our students report 84% spend 3-5 focused hours of academic instruction on a daily basis.  This does not include additional time 
spent working on assignments as follow up to daily instruction and enrichment activities.    

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

Stakeholders asked for online social interactions for their children in peer social groups.  We are offering clubs for grade level bands at the 
elementary and middle school level.  Our high school students are invited to participate in their graduating class groups hosted by assigned 
High School Specialists.  These teacher hosted peer virtual meetings will offer opportunities for students to connect with their peers and a 
consistent teacher where relationships can be built and sustained.  Our families are also asking for more project-based learning opportunities, 
they are asking for more funding for charter schools, and families would like in-person classes again like the Enrichment Academies. They 
also suggested that while we cannot meet in-person, please have more school hosted classes online, parents would like more positive 
feedback from teachers to students, and include an article or tips for teaching students with special needs in the newsletter to parents.  
Parents also advocate for additional breaks for movement to help settle the students focus during these virtual classes and clubs.  

Continuity of Learning
In-Person Instructional Offerings
[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019–2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closure.  

The most recent health department advisory for Fresno County does not allow public, charter, and private schools to hold classes and other 
school activities because of COVID-19 levels. While most of our curriculum is offered through a distance format, we strive to ensure the safety 
of students and staff, consistent with public health guidance, including hygiene practices, protective equipment, physical distancing, and 
cleaning and disinfecting when we do implement in-person activities in the future, including mandated assessments.  
While most of our curriculum is delivered in a distance-learning format, we are now infusing trauma-informed practices as well as universal 
supports to help mitigate the negative effects of COVID-19.  Details are described in greater detail within subsequent sections, including those 
specific to learning loss and mental health and social and emotional wellbeing. As a non-classroom-based independent study work charter 
school, we provide homeschooling families with a wide variety of curriculum delivery options and instructional material aligned with California 
state and Common Core standards. Upon enrollment, an appropriately certified homeschool teacher (HST) is assigned to a family and 

34 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 5

schedules a meeting to create an individual education plan for the student(s).  The role of an HST is similar to a case manager teacher within 
and the exceptional needs education environment, including monitoring the academic progress of students assigned to their caseload and 
supporting parents.  During regularly scheduled meetings, HSTs work together with families to provide support and to review student 
performance and progress to date. HSTs schedule additional meetings, and support as needed.  High school students using an online platform 
for their curriculum will have teachers who log in to the platform and note weekly progress to ensure consistent growth.  

Beginning one week after school started we began assessing all students in grades TK-12 with the STAR 360 benchmark assessment.  This 
assessment will give school staff, including assigned homeschool teachers, current data on our students and allow us to compare to STAR 360 
data from May 2019.  Teachers create individualized monthly assignments for students that are tied directly to grade level standards.
We provide homeschooling families with a variety of curriculum delivery options, including online instruction courses led by credentialed 
teachers, offline courses, and virtual courses that employ built-in accommodations, teacher support, performance tasks, and progress 
monitoring. Families select the combination of systems that best suit student learning needs and interests. We ensure students are engaged in 
appropriate educational activities on instructional days, assess the time value of independent work, and the quality of contemporaneous work 
samples.  As we have done before our extended closure, we discuss with each family the curriculum delivery options available during the 
COVID19 shelter in place restrictions.  Below are the three distance learning options offered to families during our extended COVID19 
closure: 
1) Teacher-Directed Instructional Model 

 Teacher and families select materials (e.g., digital links, digitized materials, district-adopted textbooks) 

 Students engage through recorded (asynchronous) and live sessions (synchronous) using digital platforms such as Zoom 

 Teacher prioritizes learning goals, determines full or partial online equivalent, or needed adjustments 

 Teacher communicates with students and families through phone or other agreed-upon digital platforms 2) Online Instructional Model 
 Instruction provided through district-licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity) 
 Students engage through menu-driven activities allowing for self-pacing, monitoring of student learning 

 Credentialed teacher communicates with students and families through district-licensed online content resources, phone, or other agreed-
upon digital platforms 

2) On-line Instructional Model
 Instruction provide through district-licensed on-line content specific resources (e.g. Edgenuity)
 Students engage through a menu-driven instructional model which allows them self-pace and self-select standards-based curriculum 

and activities.
 Credentialed teachers communicate with students and families through district-licensed online content resources, telephone, and/or 

additional agreed on digital platforms.

3) Blended Instructional Model 

 Teacher and families select materials (e.g., digital links, digitized materials, district-adopted textbooks) 

 Students engage through a combination of recorded/live sessions using a digital platform such as Zoom, and through the district-    

35 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 6

licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity) 
 Teacher enhances district-licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity) by prioritizes learning goals, determines full or partial online 

equivalent, or needed adjustments 
 Teacher communicates with students and families through phone or other digital platforms selected by the teacher 
Communication between the school and all stakeholders continues to be best served via email, school website and social media in order to 
keep families informed of school changes. We did not attempt to recreate long, traditional school days at home. Instead, we focus on 
implementing an online instructional delivery method that supports mastery of content that maximizes synchronous instructional time with 
teachers and other students, as well as on demand or asynchronous approaches.  In this way, time on task is viewed as a variable while 
learning is constant. Considering the effects of COVID-19 and societal unrest, our staff collaborated to prioritize learning goals, identify course 
sequence changes, increased scaffolding/instructional support, and to divide content and standards into manageable chunks through on-
demand methods and shorter, targeted synchronous lessons that include trauma-informed practices. These foci are especially important to 
accelerate the learning of students who are most vulnerable to the adverse effects of COVID-19 and societal unrest.   Further, our curriculum 
continues with the context of initial diagnostic, formative, interim, and summative assessments to inform our practices and need adjustments. 
Details are described in greater detail within subsequent sections, including those specific to learning loss and mental health and social and 
emotional wellbeing. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing
Professional development for staff and parents related to incorporating MTSS practices into lessons. $1,600 Y
Development and implementation of student-centered club to expand access to peer support and more 
enrichment opportunities 

$1,200 Y

Distance Learning Program
Continuity of Instruction
[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Every student enrolled in Monarch River Academy  has access to a full curriculum from the first day of school.  The school provided access 
to chromebooks and hot spots to all students that needed the technology.  Teacher input and/or family request triggered the delivery of 
technology.  Curriculum is delivered online for every student who did not have their own choice curriculum delivered by the first day of 
school.  Stakeholders all have access to our curriculum choices guide that is chalk full of standards based, rigorous curriculum options that 
prepare students for college and career options.  Parents were able to review this at the end of the last school year to make their choice for 
the 2020-2021 school year.  Teachers confirm the curriculum was available to the student on the first day or they offered a free curriculum to 
start with.  Students were able to engage in grade level curriculum beginning the first day of instruction and every school day after.  Students 

36 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 7

were able to begin school under the guidance of a credentialed teacher.  Non-classroom based schools have an advantage during this 
pandemic to minimize the drastic changes of in-person instruction versus their daily instruction.  MRA students receive their instruction at 
home daily therefore the move from distance learning to in-person instruction is seamless for most students.  
High school students using an online platform for their curriculum will have teachers who log in to the platform and note weekly progress to 
ensure consistent growth.  

Beginning one week after school started we began assessing all students in grades TK-12 with the STAR 360 benchmark assessment.  This 
assessment will give school staff, including assigned homeschool teachers, current data on our students and allow us to compare to STAR 
360 data from May 2019.  Teachers create individualized monthly assignments for students that are tied directly to grade level standards. 
Communication between the school and all stakeholders continues to be best served via email, school website and social media in order to 
keep families informed of school changes.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

As part of the emergency closure in March of 2020, we began planning meetings and sending questionnaires to identify any technology 
needs, particularly by English Learners (ELs), those students with exceptional needs, socioeconomically disadvantaged, foster youth, and 
homeless.   The questionnaires for technology remain available for families should their needs change.   Monarch River has surveyed and 
met with parents to verify that all students have access to technology needed to access their credentialed teacher, coursework, support 
resources and community events offered.  The school has also polled each family to determine internet connectivity needs.  Every student at 
our school has access to technology and the internet as needed.  In a concerted effort to continue academic success teachers regularly meet 
with families to identify needs and support academic growth.  During the meetings or any time in between if there is an identified need for 
technology or internet the teacher will follow through immediately with an appropriate order. In spring 2020 families were surveyed to 
determine the needs of the family.  80% of our families have no limitations to usage with the devices and high speed internet.  The remaining 
either share a device with one other member and prefer a hybrid model of curriculum delivery.   Families have been directed to let their 
homeschool teacher know if there is a change and they need new technology or tech support. The LEA monitors connectivity and technology 
access through teacher and office staff feedback.  Of course, Monarch River makes certain to provide families with distance learning 
packets, including hard copies of the curriculum, while they receive the ordered technology.  
 
We have used appropriate funding sources to provide all families with the technology needed to participate in our curriculum equitably. For 
students relying on in-person service, we have attempted to identify new technology they may need and have provided the necessary 
support to ensure they can use it effectively, notably for ELs, those with exceptional learning needs, socioeconomically disadvantaged 
students, homeless, and foster youth.  We increased parent support to maximize student learning.  We also planned to continue our focused  
parent support to maximize student learning.     
High-speed internet access is critical to the smooth operation of our regular curriculum delivery options. Based on survey responses and 
communications, all families and students have access to the technology necessary to participate in learning effectively, including access to 
high-speed internet.  Often, this takes the form of Wi-Fi hotspots. We also attempt to use external resources to help families, by actively 
engaging with our Students-in-Crisis Director who has a wealth of resources to support the community.   

37 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 8

We are also vigilant of student privacy (e.g., FERPA and  California Student Online Personal Protection Act). We take care not to record or 
take pictures of virtual meetings and use passwords to help prevent security breaches such as Zoombombing. We also use Zoom educator 
accounts (instead of consumer accounts) that offer more stringent privacy policies. We make a concerted effort to use only technology 
products that meet privacy compliance concerns. 
 
We elaborate on related professional development in the section below called Distance Learning Professional Development. 
Based on our experience, we have learned that our students need an increased diversity in the hardware used to access our curriculum. For 
example, SPED, ELs, and Early Learners tend to interact better with hybrid Chromebooks as compared to regular Chromebooks.  The hybrid 
Chromebooks also function as touchpads that help with the tactile interface.  We are currently exploring the cost of hybrid Chromebooks. We 
have also learned that certain learning management systems such as SeeSaw are better applicable to Universal Design Learning (UDL) 
approaches that help all students better access the curriculum.

Pupil Participation and Progress
[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Per SB 98 daily participation in instruction may include online activities, completion of regular assignments, completion of assessments and 
contact between the Monarch River Academy  staff and students or parents or guardians.  Teachers are assigning twenty school days of 
work for each individual student and able to assign time value, as needed.  High school students choosing Choice Plus as their curriculum 
option use course outlines that offer checklists and assignments for the student to complete.  Teachers will collect the unit projects each 
month when the student meeting occurs.  Unit assignments from Course Outlines will be graded by the teacher and could be a high quality 
work sample.  Our high school students either have a High Quality Teacher (HQT) who is teaching an A-G course or the students use our 
Course Outlines with suggested curriculum to acquire A-G status.  

To ensure each student is engaged in appropriate educational activities on instructional days, we assess the time value of independent work 
and the quality of contemporaneous work samples.  Additionally, some of our families/students choose conventional courses led by a 
credentialed teacher. Regardless, we are aware that COVID-19 and societal unrest may influence many of our students to disengage. 
Accurately monitoring engagement is one of the most important ways we can help ensure student learning and monitor student wellbeing 
during a pandemic and societal unrest. 
We measure student engagement through regular meetings with families (minimum of every 20 days) and students, weekly 10-15 minute 
check-in meetings, office hours via telephone or internet, participation in scheduled live synchronous sessions, participation in diagnostic 
assessments, interim assessments, formative assessments, and the completion of assignments.  We use our student information system 
(Pathways) to track progress, including daily engagement records.
We will also monitor the participation of students enrolled in college credit courses (dual/concurrent enrollment).  Many of our local colleges 
have implemented a distance learning-based curriculum.  

38 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 9

Distance Learning Professional Development
[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.]

We believe the conventional approach to teaching, explaining, application, followed by an assessment, do not maximize distance learning 
format, particularly, online resources. We stress tapping into a student’s interest in a topic, concept, or phenomenon before engaging them in 
a related lesson.  We help parents and teachers learn how to peak student interest through a variety of online (mostly asynchronous or 
ondemand) and place-based approaches.  For example, we use multimedia text sets through asynchronous. Often, this requires vetting 
information ahead of time to modify for various learning needs.   
We embed multi-media text-sets in digital lessons or units to maximize creativity using synchronous and synchronous approaches and 
technology. As an example, if one were to look at a digitized instructional unit, it does not visually look like a pen and paper unit.  Instead, it is 
interactive, dynamic and includes visually rich options (highlighted with icons) such as Read, Watch, Infer, Wonder, Explain, Justify, Apply, 
Analyze, Examine, Listen, Compare, Discuss that are directly related to an overarching unit question. One of the options focuses on 
providing students an opportunity to express their thoughts/answers through multi-modalities.  This approach, including visuals and supports, 
are modified for students with exceptional needs, language needs, or those with other needs and is explained in greater detail in the Pupil 
Learning Loss section.  We also participate in external professional learning opportunities.
 
Staff was surveyed to determine their needs during distance learning and meeting the students needs during the pandemic.  Teachers have 
requested support with special needs students who are needing additional strategies for their students' achievement.  Dr. Steven James has 
provided a two hour professional development on this since school has started and will continue to provide professional development.  
Teachers are requesting professional development regarding English Language Learners for best practices and curriculum options. 
Teachers need to be aware of transitioning high schoolers  after graduation because there is a big difference in services for diploma and 
certificate of completion students.  Teachers would like online social opportunities for themselves and their students.   Each of these requests 
are being addressed and will be offered before the end of November.  
This year, we have added two new aspects of our professional learning related to distance learning. First, we are providing staff with 
professional learning focused on strategies to accelerate learning to mitigate anticipated learning loss including a focus on intervention. Our 
approach to mitigating learning loss is explained in greater detail in other sections, including Pupil Learning Loss. Second, we help staff and 
families learn how to implement trauma-informed practices and understand social emotional learning within a distance format and within 
lessons. Social Emotional/students in crisis trauma-informed practices were implemented as tier 2 supports in our MTSS before the 
pandemic. Our approach to social emotional learning is explained in greater detail in other sections, including Mental Health and Social and 
Emotional Well-Being.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

Teachers have been surveyed and administrative teams have conducted informal meetings noting the needs of teachers and families based 
on survey data, feedback and assessment data.  Supporting families in distance learning has been successful for staff as in-person meetings 
converted to virtual.  In order to drive academic instruction and meeting the needs of our students we have shifted resources to focus on 
getting children college and career ready.  

39 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 10

Monarch River Academy  school has hired additional staff to serve several populations of students to address learning loss as well as social 
emotional needs. Due to COVID-19 and based on data these additional positions are a direct result of the prevention of learning loss.  The 
school’s response to the needs of our students and LEA was to dedicate our commitment to high standards and prepare all students to be 
college and career ready.  To provide dynamic instructional support to each of our students who are adjusting to the loss of in-person 
instruction and social communities, we have added the following staffing positions.  

Three English Learner Coordinators - provide high quality EL instruction, give the ELPAC assessment, work with homeschool teachers to 
provide academic support based on proficiency level and student needs.  Provide weekly outstanding direct instruction to EL students in a 
virtual format.

Three High School Specialists - The new specialists will monitor and support high school students by connecting them with grade level peers 
for social and academic support as well as monitor them for social emotional wellbeing.  All high school students have been invited to twice 
monthly virtual events.  The specialists will oversee the four-year plan that we title Individualized Graduation Plan (IGP).  This team will 
provide professional development for staff meetings and support their teaching teams with high school needs.  

504 Coordinator - Assess needs of 504 students, schedule and conduct 504 meetings, participate in staff meetings, offer professional 
development opportunities for homeschool teaching staff to better understand 504 plans and long-term support for the students.  

Director of Community Engagement - Leads and coordinates virtual events, connects stakeholders together in order to best serve the LEA 
community, The person will gather feedback and assess the needs of the community, direct communication via school websites and social 
media.  Support teachers with student clubs and parent universities, as well as any other community relation needs. Events will be offered in-
person as soon as COVID precautions have been lifted in Fresno county.

Eight Intervention specialists - Based on benchmark data, teacher anecdotal records and previous CAASPP results works with specific skills 
students need to improve academic achievement and prevent further learning loss.  Offer scaffolded support to students as they bridge from 
one skill to another.  

Assistant Director of Special Education - Yolanda Vasquez has been hired to support our Special Education department and to provide our 
Students-in-Crisis department leadership and development.  She has built a public website for families and an in-house support site for staff. 
Three crisis and transition support specialists to oversee the needs of students needed assistance.

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.]
We are a non-classroom-based independent study work charter school, and most curriculum delivery options will look similar, if not identical, 
to our current distance-learning format.  Below is a summary of the support we typically provide students with unique needs.  However, this 
year we are infusing a greater amount of trauma-informed practices that we will explain in greater detail in other sections, including Mental 
Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being. 

40 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 11

English learners 
Given our previous content delivery options, many of our ELs can maintain English language development (ELD) supports with minimal 
disruption.  We provide leveled designated ELD classes composed of approximately 20 students administered virtually by an appropriately 
credentialed and trained teacher. Our ELD Director monitors student progress. Additionally, we integrate English language development in 
and through subject matter courses. Further, our virtual curriculum options (E.g., MobyMax, BrainPop, McGraw-Hill ODI) facilitate embedded 
ELD instructional support, including built-in accommodations, parent portals, instructional videos, hands-on activities, performance tasks, and 
progress monitoring. However, given the anticipated learning loss caused by COVID-19 and societal unrest, we are increasing the 
professional staff learning related to in lesson supports to accelerate learning for ELs. 
Planned ELD lessons with fluent speakers/instructors to provide models for student language. These will be leveled lessons addressing 
specific standards (e.g., writing an opinion letter).
 Non-academic opportunities for students to interact with their peers through online clubs and activities. For example, students need to 

have the opportunity to converse with English Only (EO) students. YV/MRA help facilitate these opportunities by hosting Community 
Connection events. Unfortunately, with COVID, the opportunity for EL students to hear and practice speaking English has diminished. 
Families might have participated in co-op events before, but now they cannot meet due to COVID.

 Parents want their students to be successful in school and for their students to feel capable, competent, and confident when interacting 
with their peers and when engaged in academic work. Parents want their students to learn English, but they also do not want their 
students to disconnect from their culture and their native language. 

 We will conduct a needs assessment at ELAC meetings for each school to establish the parents’ concerns and priorities, particularly 
under COVID-19 conditions.

 We will provide opportunities for EL families to come together to receive support in virtual settings to replace the in-person events where 
EL students can practice their English skills. 

 We will work on creating a collection of resources that are easy to access and located all in one place.
 We will monitor the progress of our EL students throughout the year, so parents/teachers/ELCs can identify if there are gaps in the 

student learning and be able to use that data to create interventions and support for English Learners.
Our core instructional program is based on the principles of Universal Design for Learning or UDL. UDL is an educational framework that 
guides the development of learning experiences to accommodate a variety of individual learning differences. It provides multiple means of 
engagement, including multiple means of representation, action, and expression.  

Pupils with exceptional needs 
Our core program implements California’s multi-tiered system of support framework (MTSS), an inclusive model for meeting the needs of all 
students, including those with exceptional needs.  Essentially, MTSS is a whole-school, data-driven, prevention-based framework through 
which we provide a continuum of supports to address varying student needs. We combine our MTSS approach with an inclusive core 
instructional program based on the principles of UDL, regular monitoring of academic and behavioral indicators, and tailored differentiated 
support for all students.  In this model, Tier 1 supports are universal and available to all and is intended to meet the needs of approximately 
80 to 90% of students. This year, our tier 1 supports include trauma-informed practices. When our universal supports are insufficient to 
address individual academic or behavioral needs, we administer tier 2 or additional supports individually and in small groups. These supports 

41 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 12

are short term and deployed rapidly to address issues as they arise for approximately 5-10% of students. However, there approximately 15% 
of our students require additional focused tier 3 supports. These supports are intensive and often are longer-term.
Despite COVID-19 and societal unrest, we have not experienced any student disengaging for ten instructional days or longer necessitating 
the crafting of specific distance learning plans within a student’s individualized education program, or IEP. However, we are working with 
families to determine how best to administer occupational, speech, or physical therapy virtually. Our attempted solution varies according to 
the need of each student and family.  We are also attempting to find a way to administer assessments virtually as needed optimally. 
For our pupils with exceptional needs we have an extensive system of support which includes; an original offer of a Free Appropriate Public 
Education (FAPE) to our families as their students will receive their services virtually as they enter Monarch River Academy  school. If a 
student needs in-person services, which is based on data or if the student has a debilitating disability where a virtual platform is not 
appropriate, we use outside Non-Public Agencies (NPA) to perform these services. The exception for in-person services is Specialized 
Academic Instruction (SAI), which must be administered by a credentialed special education teacher. Some of our NPA’s have credentialed 
special education teachers on staff and we can use them, or we ask our own special education teachers to administer SAI. With the 
exception of SAI most of our services are provided by NPA’s. 
In case of a pandemic or other emergency situation that will last more than ten days our offer to all of our students, to include students 
receiving in-person services will be virtual services.  These services will remain in effect until emergency personnel or the State and Local 
Health Departments deem it safe for our students to resume in-person services.  Once it is safe for our students to return to their normal 
education routine, IEP will be scheduled to see, if there has been any significant regression and identify a plan to get the student back to their 
levels prior to the event.

Pupils who are experiencing homelessness and those in foster care 
Our students in foster care or who are homeless are experiencing a negative impact due to COVID-19 and societal unrest. As an example, 
we are noticing a higher homeless rate which has been compounded due to the forest fires in California.  
An increased number of students are experiencing homelessness (including doubling up with another family) as a direct result of COVID-19. 
As an example, several parents/guardians have lost their jobs and have moved in with another family to help make ends meet.  To increase 
our support for students experiencing homelessness, and those in foster care, we are: 
1. Strategically planning for and implementing a time during the instructional day to learn more about students and to listen to their concerns 

and needs. E.g., communication circles during class (online). Many middle and high school students still struggle to find a caring adult in 
school. Checking in regularly, both formally and informally can give young people the space to share their interests, provide feedback on 
lessons, and open up about what might be affecting their ability to learn. This helps to normalize student struggles and to increase 
resiliency 

2. Implementing universal screening (questionnaire) by asking all students about the economic impact of the coronavirus lockdowns on their 
families’ financial and housing situations before they return to school, so they get access to services. Students are often reluctant to self-
identify as being homeless, or their families may not consider their living situation as unstable or know they are eligible for support.   

3. Focusing on maintaining a personalized relationship with students and families. The impact of the pandemic and societal unrest increases 
student concerns about their families’ safety and emotional wellbeing. We strive to establish meaningful relationships with families to 

42 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 13

mitigate the adverse effects of the pandemic and unrest by helping to establish a safe and supportive environment for learning.  We do 
this is a variety of ways, explained in greater detail with the Mental Health and Social-Emotional Support section.  

4. Maximize instructional flexibility and support. Students in foster care or experiencing homelessness may be unable to attend each real-
time class or meet a project deadline. We are aware of the need for increased flexibility and will work with students and parents/guardians 
to avoid any unnecessary academic penalty related to matters beyond their normal control.   

5. Increased outreach and coordination with community resources through our specialized website that specifically addresses students and 
families in crisis. Development of a parent mentoring group. Given the impact of the pandemic and societal unrest, we know that we must 
be coordinating with community resources including county and state agencies. 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing
Professional learning for staff and parents related to incorporating social emotional practices into lessons as 
well as intervention, specifically in a distance learning format, including eight intervention specialist and crisis 
expert

$43,400 Y

STAR360 diagnostic/interim assessments $28,000 Y
Additional devices, including Chromebooks for English learners, students living in poverty, students placed in 
foster care, students experiencing homelessness, and those with exceptional needs

$56,000 Y

Additional connectivity, including hotspots, modems, and routers for English learners, students living in poverty, 
students placed in foster care, students experiencing homelessness, and those with exceptional needs

$8,000 Y

Online resources, including MobyMax, BrainPOP, and Age of Learning $6,000 Y
Creation of an ELD specialist leadership position $33,952 Y
Creation of two ELD support specialist $8,000 Y
Creation of three high school support specialist positions $12,000 Y
Costs associated with staff using telephone and internet $60,000 N

Pupil Learning Loss
[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019–2020 and 2020–21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.  

Students are all assessed by the third week of school in both English Language Arts and Mathematics using the STAR 360 diagnostic 
assessment.  Teachers will report findings to parents and make instructional decisions based on this data to inform next steps of instruction.  
Teachers and parents will collaborate with one another on instructional protocols and what steps may be taken to increase achievement.  
Teachers can look at subgroups and work together to brainstorm instructional strategies to support students who have gaps in learning and 
are working to reach grade level proficiency.  Intervention staff is being hired and trained to support our learners who show possible learning 
loss.  MRA will offer Parent Universities to provide training in instructional practice and best teaching strategies for specific content.  These 

43 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 14

Parent Universities will also engage parents in understanding the data presented in the STAR 360 reports.  Supporting the parents as they 
work to increase achievement while supported by a highly-qualified credentialed teacher.  This important benchmark assessment will be 
given to students three times per year, as opposed to just twice in years past.  
Our school website houses a video library of interventions and resources that are available to all stakeholders.  
Our charter has a dedicated team of leaders who are committed to assessing, planning, teaching and monitoring our English language 
learners.  This team is highly qualified and experienced in teaching English learners and will be holding a number of instructional sessions for 
the students according to their language proficiency and learning plans.  They will also develop a number of professional development 
training for our staff regarding research based best practices for our English learners.  

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.]

Monarch River Academy  school will be using the STAR 360 diagnostic assessment to gain access to the instructional planning report.  This 
report identifies the standards that students have mastery over and what appropriate next instructional step should be in order to access grade 
level standard proficiency.  Professional development will be given to train teachers in analyzing STAR 360 reports and how to deliver proper 
strategies and suggestions for parents.  Training teachers and parents will be a valuable resource in identifying and remediating pupil learning 
loss and ongoing needs.  Having trained parents in best teaching strategies for specific instructional needs will improve our students academic 
experience.  Professional development will be provided for teaching staff to learn how to find value in the depth of instruction, not the pace 
necessarily.  Using formative assessment to gauge real time progress will impact student learning as teachers meet for students conferences 
each learning period.  Student portfolios for all Choice Plus high schools students will be required this school year in order to assess a wide 
body of learning and understanding.  During scheduled student meetings teachers can evaluate assignments, writing samples, listen to 
students read or other modes of evaluation.  Ongoing assessment will provide formative feedback for new assignments and goals.  Teachers 
can provide specific intervention to their students and utilize our intervention specialists for student support.  

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

As stated in the Pupil Learning Loss section, there are no standardized test results or valid interim test results for the 19-20 school year to 
compare the pupil proficiency growth using our pupil learning loss strategies.  Similar to the State’s approach with the 2021 Dashboard, we 
will compare our  2020-21 CAASPP and Dashboard results (assuming CAASPP is implemented) with corresponding performances in 2018-
19. There is a scarcity of State standards-aligned competency-based assessments to accurately capture a student’s learning status at the 
beginning of the 2020-21 school year, including the learning loss emanating from the 2019-20 school year. Regardless, we plan to analyze 
the results of the STAR360 diagnostic assessment three times this year to formulate a general understanding of how students are 
progressing toward understanding State content standards.   Further, we will do our best to administer the summative ELPAC this year. 
Equally, if not more important, will be our use of formative assessments to measure the effectiveness of our learning loss mitigation 
strategies. Ideally, formative assessments occur during each lesson.  More than ever, formative assessments are vital. Formative 
assessments are not tests in the conventional sense.  They do not look like a traditional quiz or final examination. A formative assessment 

44 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 15

refers to a teacher’s evaluation of student proficiency during a lesson. This type of evaluation takes on a variety of methods whereby the 
teacher observes and processes evidence of learning, including asking guiding and probing questions, observing students during student to 
student discussions, etc. In this manner, a teacher may also take into account student’s English language proficiency and make immediate 
adjustments. We explain our strategies to implement formative assessments and accelerating learning in greater detail in the next section. 
We will use the same approach explained in the Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach section of this document to communicate with 
parents regarding student learning loss and progress. These strategies consider a family’s home language, literacy level, and access to 
technology.  

Comparing data over time of student achievement through consistent data will direct the staff and LEA on how to proceed with instruction.  
Regular analysis of benchmark data, student work, course progress and teacher anecdotal data will drive the instructional program and 
learning plan for each student.  Curriculum and intervention will be aligned with grade level Common Core standards.  The effectiveness will 
be monitored through reports pulled from School Pathways, STAR 360 schoolwide report, leadership team feedback and other stakeholder 
feedback. 

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing
Costs of additional English learner support $22,000 Y
Costs of additional reading/literacy support $22,000 Y
Costs of additional mathematics support $22,000 Y
Creation of crisis support team $24,000 Y
Creation of School Support positions to support unduplicated students and provide parent outreach $30,000 Y
Creation of intervention system MTSS to mitigate learning loss and address social emotional needs $22,000 Y
Creation of specialist position to support students in crisis and track intervention success $24,100 Y
Staff and parent training related to understanding our MTSS, and expressly what resources are provided at 
each tier 

$1,800 Y

Staff and parent training related to understanding our English Language Development strategies $3,960 Y
Expenditure associated with the translation of communication and Learning Continuity Plan $1,200 Y
Expenditures associated with staff training related to formative assessments and refining curriculum Scope and 
Sequences as well as parent training with assessment reports

$4,200 Y

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.]

45 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 16

The staff holds each student and family in high regard with intentional focus on educating the whole child.  We acknowledge that it is hard to 
learn academic content if the emotional well being of a child is not in a positive state.  Teacher input and parent conferences offer support to 
the students in an ongoing, cyclical schedule.  The school has a full time school psychologist to offer mental and emotional well being 
support. 
Our Students in Crisis team is available any time for student support and offers dedicated professional development for staff, students and 
parents.  Recently launched to the LEA is a Families in Crisis website that will house resources and contact information for our school 
community. 
Students who have experienced or are experiencing trauma, are not emotionally available for learning. The expectation that they fully engage 
in academic learning is not realistic and can be further detrimental to their mental health. Further, students with behavioral and mental health 
needs are often under-identified and underserved, resulting in increased disciplinary, safety, and delinquency problems both at school and in 
the community.
A student experiencing a psychological crisis that impacts their normal coping mechanisms or a student experiencing a  lack of immediate 
basic needs will need supports and services.
Monarch River Academy  School (MRAS) believes that schools must be considered the gateway to mental health services. MRAS 
understands that the Covid-19 pandemic may worsen existing mental health problems because of the unique combination of the public health 
crisis and social isolation.
To address the need and help mitigate any loss of learning due to mental health trauma MRAA is supporting our students, families, and staff in 
the following ways:
 A “Students in Crisis” team that includes a special education assistant director, two full-time school psychologists, a school nurse,  

academic intervention instructors, and community outreach staff.
 A “Students in Crisis” internal website that houses resources based on need and family geographical location. This site also contains the 

protocols our staff must take when confronted with a student crisis so that we can best support our students and their families.
 A “Families in Crisis” website that houses resources and tools to help families. Click here.  This website is updated regularly to include the 

most recent information.
 Monthly student workshops put on by the SPED Transition team. These address mental health topics are offered to all high school 

students. Past workshop topics have included:
 Managing Stress
 Cyberbullying
 How to advocate for oneself
 Anger Management
 The SPED Transition team uses the California’s Mental Health Cooperative Programs, Collaborative for Academic, Social, and 

Emotional Learning or CASEL Framework and the Pathways RTC to inform our instruction and delivery of services. 
o The Research and Training Center (RTC) for Pathways to Positive Futures has worked to improve the lives of youth and young 

adults with serious mental health conditions through rigorous research and effective training and dissemination. Their work is 
guided by the perspectives of young people, and their families, and based in a positive development framework. 

 The SPED Transition team uses the Pathways RTC series of Online Modules to train and inform our staff. These modules are designed 
for individuals who work with transition-aged youth

46 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://sites.google.com/inspireschools.org/yvcs-mra-familiesincrisis/home


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 17

 To support our staff who are experiencing mental health difficulties, a staff support group is being created. This support group will meet 
regularly and share resources on managing work-home responsibilities during COVID-19 and beyond.

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not is not engaging in instruction and is 
at risk of learning 

We are a non-classroom-based independent study charter school. While our school year is longer than 175 instructional days, some of the 
language in Education Code §43502 (based on AB77), including daily synchronous instructional minutes with a teacher do not apply to our 
format. To ensure each student is engaged in appropriate educational activities on instructional days, we assess the time value of independent 
work and the quality of contemporaneous work samples.  Additionally, some of our families/students choose conventional courses led by a 
credentialed teacher. Regardless, we are aware that COVID-19 and societal unrest may influence many of our students to disengage. 
Monitoring attendance is vital to help ensure student learning and account for student wellbeing during a pandemic across any instructional 
model. Our plan reflects positive strategies for encouraging student engagement, with a focus on how to best center in relationships in a virtual 
setting.  We incorporate trauma-informed practices into our regular (every 20 days) meetings with students and parents, including social-
emotional check-ins and maintaining strong personalized relationships.  Through these meetings, we will be able to quickly discern student 
disengagement, particularly for those who are disengaged for 60% (3 days).  

Student engagement is measured through regular meetings with families and students, weekly 10-15 minute check-in meetings, office hours 
via telephone or internet, participation in scheduled live synchronous sessions, participation in diagnostic and interim assessments, formative 
assessments, and completion of assignments as documented in our student information system (Pathways).  Our daily engagement records 
are also uploaded into our student information system. When we notice a student begins to disengage, physically and emotionally, we first 
speak with his/her parents/guardians.  Depending on what we learn during this meeting, we will provide additional support to meet student 
needs.  As an example, if a student disengages because she needs other emotional support/counseling, we will work with a family to provide 
that. Of course, there are times when students will need even more support, including referrals to outside services.  When this occurs, we 
collaborate with the family to explore options and facilitate referrals.   
Any time we communicate with families about any matter, we do not assume families speak or understand English or have access to the 
internet, let alone know how to access an email. We communicate with parents and guardians through our regularly scheduled in person 
meetings. These in-person meetings are critical since we know not all of our families are literate even in their native language. Additionally, 
sent translated communication through the following mediums: email, social media, school websites, telephone calls, school website, regular 
mail delivery, and text messages. 

School Nutrition
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

47 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 18

Our non-classroom based is not required to provide, we do work with community outreach organizations to receive EBT cards.  The school 
has a classified position that represents our foster and homeless liaison who serves these families as a need may arise.  

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary]
Section Description Total Funds Contributing
N/A 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment Based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-

Income students 

7.89% $588,622 

Required Descriptions
[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.]

Monarch River Academy  is committed to each of our students and believe that all students can benefit from services provided by our 
transition team.  The MRA team supports the well being of all students by collaborating with the SPED Transition Team and outside agencies 
to offer the following mental health supports.
SPED Transition Dedicated Website: click here
The Key to our Success!
Assess
 Multiple assessments at multiple stages of the students’ high school careers.
 Teach students how to do self-assessments. 
Individualize
 Take constant feedback and data from students and families to tweek the program in real time.
 Workshops are based on student surveys and requests.

48 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://sites.google.com/inspireschools.org/yvcandmratransition/home


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 19

Serve
 Multiple Transition SAI sessions a week per M/M Transition teacher.
 Multiple 1-1 Transition SAI sessions a week per M/S Transition teacher
 Workshops
 Community Based Instruction (CBI)
 Job Coaches.
Additionally, we support in the following ways:
 We are developing an in-house evidence - based transition curriculum. This curriculum is the result of data collected over the past 3-4 

years.
 GE students and students with 504 plans are regularly invited to attend the Transition workshops.
 Parent Transition Workshops.
 Agency linkage- Connect students to Regional Center (RC), Department of Rehab (DOR), and Apprenticeships. 
 Personalized career assessments/guidance/counseling using multiple modalities.
 Guest speaker webinars showcasing different industries and careers.
Students in Crisis Supports:
The MRAS and MRA teams support the well-being of all students by collaborating with the SPED Transition Team and outside agencies to 
offer the following mental health supports.

- Teacher-led workshops on social well-being. These workshops target issues that affect how our students think, feel, and act. Workshops 
have included:

 How to handle stress.
 How to relate to others appropriately in the workplace
 How to make good choices.
 Social Skills: Dealing with bullies.
 Internet Safety
 Making Friends
 Self-Advocacy: Anger Management
 Consent, Safety and Being Assertive
Agency led Webinars. We partner with various agencies to bring valuable information and services including mental health supports to our 
students via a live workshop and/or webinar. Agencies that have participated and continue to participate include:

 Regional Center (RC)
 Department of Rehabilitation (DOR)
 Job Corps
 OPARC

49 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

https://www3.dds.ca.gov/RC/RCSvs.cfm
https://www.dor.ca.gov/
https://www.jobcorps.gov/
https://www.oparc.org/about-us/


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 20

Transition Teacher follow-up.  The transition teachers help parents fill out paperwork for the DOR and RC to ensure students get outside 
services. Our transition teachers have developed and cultivated close relationships with the case managers/service coordinators at several 
regional centers across the state.

Programs are built using Mental Health Resources.   Our Transition programs are based on research and data that outlines what is 
needed in a program to address the mental health of young adults with disabilities. 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.]

The school has increased and improved support in the areas of Foster and Homeless youth, English learners and low-income students.  
Monarch River Academy  has hired a supreme candidate to fill the role on our leadership team for Students in Crisis and Transition.  This 
position actively connects resources to all students.  
The MRA students needing EL instruction during distance learning and during regular school years are provided at home instruction via a 
school provided digital curriculum.  English Language Arts curriculum has a designated ELD component.  In response to COVID and EL best 
practice the school has hired three EL Coordinators to assess, plan, implement and monitor our students learning English.  This team will 
give the ELPAC and host live instruction for peer to peer interaction and language development.

The actions/services intended to increase the quantity and improve the quality of support for English learners, students living in poverty, and 
students placed in foster care are summarized below according to respective sections:
Continuity of Learning
 staff and parent training related trauma-informed practices
 access to community resources.
Distance Learning
staff and parent training related trauma-informed practices in a distance-learning format diagnostic and interim assessments

 additional devices to access the distance-learning curriculum
 expenditures associated with ensuring access to the high-speed internet, including hot-spots
 online learning resources
Learning Loss 
The leadership team analyzes data, our dashboard and parent surveys- to help maximize our MTSS, including analysis of interim 
assessment results and coordination with community resources/entities

 staff and parent training related to our MTSS
 staff and parent training related to our English Language Development program
 staff training related to formative assessments, instructional supports, and the refinement of our Scope and Sequences-as explained in 

the Learning Loss section, these strategies are critical to accelerating learning.

50 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Special Education Transition Program Presentation

Section: III. Academic Excellence
Item: B. Special Education Transition Program Presentation
Purpose: FYI
Submitted by:
Related Material: SPED Transition 60-Second Teaser.mp4

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 51 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM



Attachments
The following files are attached to this PDF: You will need to open this document in an application 
that supports attachments (i.e. Adobe Reader) in order to access these files.

SPED Transition 60-Second Teaser.mp4

52 of 52Powered by BoardOnTrack

Monarch River Academy - Special Board Meeting - Agenda - Friday September 11, 2020 at 1:30 PM

http://get.adobe.com/reader/

	Agenda
	II.A Coversheet for Unaudited Actuals for 2019-2020
	Monarch River_Financial Package_Unaudited Actual Report.pdf

	II.B Coversheet for Charter School Capital Introduction & Presentation
	CSC DTF preso 200910.pdf

	III.A Coversheet for Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
	LCaP - Monarch River Academy 2020.docx

	III.B Coversheet for Special Education Transition Program Presentation
	Attachments


